
 
 

SCRUTINY : LEARNING AND LGES 
MEETING 

 
4.00 pm MONDAY, 7TH JUNE, 2021 

 

REMOTE MEETING - MICROSOFT TEAMS 
 

A Pre-Meeting will take place prior to this meeting and a separate invitation 
will be sent from Scrutiny Support Officers to Committee Members only  

 
 

Please note that today’s meeting will be recorded.  
  

This recording may be broadcast on the Authority’s internet 
 

All attendees will be in view of the camera and, by attending you are consenting to being 
filmed and to the possible use of those images and sound recordings being used as outlined 

above. 

 

 
 

This Agenda has been prepared by the Democratic Services Department. Any 
member of the public requiring information should contact the department on 

(01685) 725284 or email democratic@merthyr.gov.uk. 
 

Any reference documents referred to but not published as part of this agenda can 
be found on the Council’s website or intranet under Background Papers. 

 

AGENDA 
 

1. Apologies for absence   

2. Declarations of Interest (including whipping 
declarations)  

 

 Members are reminded of their personal 
responsibility to declare any personal and 
prejudicial interest in respect of matters contained 

 

mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk


in this agenda in accordance with the provisions of 
the Local Government and Finance Act 1992 
relating to Council Tax, the Local Government Act 
2000, the Council’s Constitution and the Members 
Code of Conduct 
 
Note: 
 

(a) Members are reminded that they must 
identify the item number and subject matter 
that their interest relates to and signify the 
nature of the personal interest and 

 
(b) Where Members withdraw from a Meeting 

as a consequence of the disclosure of a 
prejudicial interest they must notify the 
Chair when they leave 

 
 

3. Adult Community Learning Partnership Progress 
Report  

 

 To consider report of the Chief Officer Education 
 

3 - 10 

4. Scrutiny Referrals, Feedback and Follow up 
Actions  

 

5. Reflection and Evaluation of Meeting   

 To receive an update from the Chair 
 

 

6. Work Programme  11 - 20 

7. Any other business deemed urgent by the Chair  
 

 

  
 
COMPOSITION: 

 
Councillors:  H R Jones (Chair) 

                      S Jago (Vice-Chair) 
 

 Councillors: H Barrett, B Carter, D Isaac and M Jones 
 
Co-optees: C Brown, K Phelan, M Symonds and 
F Whitefoot 

  
together with appropriate officers 
 

 
If you would prefer a copy of this agenda in another language please contact 

democratic@merthyr.gov.uk or telephone 01685 725284 

mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk


Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 

 
 

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE REPORT 

 

 

 

 

To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen 

Adult Community Learning Partnership Progress 
Report 
 

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 The report provides an update for members on the progress against the Estyn Post 

Inspection Action Plan and the impact of the pandemic on this progress identifying 
both benefits and drawbacks identified over the past 18 months across the partnership. 

   
1.2 To update Members on the impact of the Welsh Government restructuring of Adult 

Community learning Funding  and the progress toward developing options to bring 
back to members surrounding any future approach to a an Adult Community 
Learning Regional Partnership.  

 

2.0 RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.1 Members consider the progress of the Post Inspection Action Plan  and the regional 

partnership arrangements and future impact of coordination options being proposed.  
 

 

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 

3.1 The Estyn inspection report on Merthyr Tydfils Adult Community Learning 
Partnership was formally published on 22nd May 2020 and detailed the inspection 
findings and recommendations, including the grading of each of the 5 key areas of 
the common inspection framework; 
 

Standards - GOOD* 
Wellbeing and attitudes to learning - GOOD 
Teaching and learning experiences - GOOD 
Care, support and guidance. - GOOD 
Leadership and Management - ADEQUATE** 

Date Written May 2021 

Report Author Chris Hole, Diane Jones, Karen Fisher  

Service Area Community Wellbeing  

Committee Date 7th June 2021 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



 
*GOOD - Strong features, although minor aspects may require improvement 
**ADEQUATE- Strengths outweigh weaknesses, but important aspects require improvement.  

 
3.2 Where an ACL Partnership has a judgment of ADEQUATE, Estyn make a follow up 

visit to monitor progress a year to eighteen months later, for the Merthyr Tydfil ACL 
Partnership this would have been scheduled for February or August 2021. 
 

3.3 Following the Partnership review of the inspection report and the Estyn 
recommendations (below), a Post Inspection Action Plan (PIAP) was agreed. 
 
1. Strengthen partnership arrangements to ensure that all partners contribute 

coherently to informing and driving quality improvement across the partnership; 
 
2. Improve the quality of teaching in ESOL lessons and the standards that learners 

achieve; 
 
3. Increase the bilingual and Welsh medium provision and the use of Welsh across 

all learning areas; 
 
4. Identify and share good practice in provision effectively across the partnership;  
 
 
 

3.4 Proposed Regional Partnership The outcome of the Welsh Government (WG) 
consultation on the proposed changes to ACL was announced in late 2019 by the 
Minister for Education.   In brief, the WG decision was to adopt a two-stage approach 
to the implementation of change, first to restructure the funding and bring planning of 
provision in line with further education and secondly to a National Strategic body for 
adult community learning .              
 

 

4.0 WHERE WE WERE – IN SUMMARY 
 
4.1 Leadership and Management was judged as ADEQUATE, the inspection highlighted 

and made a key recommendation for the Partnership arrangements to be 
strengthened and processes put into place to ensure that all partners contribute 
coherently to informing and driving quality improvement across the partnership. 
 

4.2 Whilst the majority of the teaching and learning aspect across the Partnership was 
judged as GOOD, with tutors demonstrating comprehensive subject knowledge, and 
with many learners making strong progress in their learning and applying their newly 
acquired knowledge in their everyday lives and work.  Family and Parenting 
Programmes was highlighted as a particular strong feature, with a request to provide 
two case studies to share as a good practice example across the sector. However, 
the teaching and learning of English to Speakers of Other Languages (ESOL) was 
identified as an area for improvement, for both the teaching and learning 
experiences and outcomes, and identified the need to develop a shared Partnership 
approached to sharing good practice to support quality standards and staff CPD 

 

Page 4



4.3 The inspection also highlighted that there was not enough progress made in regard a 
previous inspection recommendation to increase the bilingual and Welsh medium 
provision and use of Welsh across the learning areas.  

 

5.0 WHERE WE ARE NOW  
 

5.1 Due to, and throughout the pandemic, all Estyn inspections and follow up visits have 
been put on hold, and this decision remains in place with indications that inspection 
visits are not likely to re-commence until the Spring/Summer 2022. With CORE Estyn 
inspections on hold, and to maintain contact with the sector during the pandemic, 
Estyn inspectors have been conducting regular online engagement visits with ACL 
Partnerships across Wales. This has focused on key area such as the challenges of 
the pandemic, learner mental health and wellbeing, teaching leaning and assessment.  
These visits have provided an insight to the challenges faced by the sector and 
Partnerships not only here in Merthyr Tydfil but across wales throughout the pandemic. 
The feedback  and information collated has further evidenced the levels of stress and 
anxiety for both staff and learners, the poor access to IT for some learners, the training 
needs of staff to move to online approaches, the challenges of developing online 
delivery.   
 

5.2 MTCBC continue to drive the Adult Community Learning partnership agenda however 
like many other services, partners have had unique challenges to come to terms with 
and therefore this has impacted upon the progress of the Post Inspection Action Plan 
(PIAP). Early into the pandemic the MT ACL Partnership Steering group meetings 
were moved, and remain online, with this format having a positive result in regard to 
attendance and engagement in general. Through a combination of the online meeting 
format, the Estyn engagement visits and a series of online Task and Finish groups the 
Partnership have been able to look at pandemic issues and renew their focus on the 
inspection recommendations and key actions set out in the  Post Inspection Action 
Plan (PIAP), the following is a summary of progress toward inspection  
recommendations; 
 

Strengthen partnership arrangements to ensure that all partners contribute 
coherently to informing and driving quality improvement across the partnership; 

 
 Named strategic lead for each key recommendation from the following organisations, MTCBC, The 

College Merthyr Tydfil, Adult Learning Wales and Canolfa Soar.   

 The principles of a Partnership annual quality assurance cycle which sets out the framework of key 
activities to support self-assessment, data collection and analysis, curriculum planning and learner 
voice and consultation agreed and being developed.  

 Agreement on developing a system to collate and analyse safeguarding and learner complaints 

 A review of the classroom observation process, in particular the online approach, and agreement to 
develop a cross peer observation format across the Partnership 

 Agreement to develop baseline data across the Partnership on engagement and outcomes for 
purposes other than just Estyn inspections.  

 
  

Improve the quality of teaching in ESOL lessons and the standards that learners 
achieve; 

 
 Partnership agreement implemented to reduce the number of providers of ESOL from 3 to 2 

Page 5



 ESOL provision has been reviewed by the two Partnership providers, Adult Learning Wales and The 
College Merthyr Tydfil.  

 A plan has been agreed which includes addressing the gaps in part time provision, and with the 
commitment to review and monitor. 

.     
 

Increase the bilingual and Welsh medium provision and the use of Welsh across all 
learning areas 
 

 Links have been strengthened to the MTCBC Welsh Language Officer, which has benefited the 
Partnership in the development of resources and inclusion and promotion of Welsh Cultural events.   

 Agreement has made across the Partnership to audit the Welsh Language skills of staff and learners.   

 Strategically, work ongoing to strengthen links to the Partnership, with support and contribution to 
the Welsh Language Strategy and the Welsh Education Forum.  

 
Identify and share good practice in provision effectively across the partnership;  

 An agreement in principle to develop a MT ACL Professional Practice Forum where staff and 
managers can learn from each other and Continue Professional Development (CPD) needs can be 
identified and a collaborative approach to training,    

 Agreement to review and roll out the annual learner voice survey focussing on COVID recovery, and 
areas such as leaners mental health and wellbeing, IT needs, preferred learning environment 

 
 

5.3 The impact of the pandemic has undoubtedly influenced the Partnership outcomes 
and curriculum offer as providers struggled with the challenges of meeting the needs 
of delivery, staff and learners needs. The majority of providers efforts have rightly 
endeavoured to focus on maintaining engagement with learners and offer as much of 
their programme as possible. They have achieved this by developing keeping in touch 
strategies and a blended delivery offer where learners are able to access courses 
online, and where guidance has allowed attend face to face classroom learning.  
 

5.4 Partnership feedback has indicated that learner enrolment levels for the majority of 
providers has decreased by over 50% during the pandemic and consequently has had 
a major impact on outcomes. However, this is not the case for all providers, there has 
been an increase in enrolments for online Welsh courses with learners enrolling from 
across Wales, the UK and World due to the increased accessibility. However further 
analysis of this engagement is planned to establish the percentage of learners from 
Merthyr Tydfil.    
 

5.5 With the recent lifting of the COVID restrictions and the opening up of community 
venues the move back to face to face learning in the community has started in small 
numbers. Early indications are that some learners want to continue their learning 
online and others are eager to get back into the classroom, this is particularly evident 
in the most vulnerable learners who enjoy, and benefit from the social interaction and 
peer support face to face delivery provides. Going forward Partners have indicated 
this blended approach of online and face to face learning will continue to be offered 
and, in some instances, further developed. However, this shift in delivery is a challenge 
as enrolment numbers are low and therefore will continue to be monitored across the 
partnership to identify the ongoing impacts.    
 

5.6 Throughout the pandemic and as we emerge and work toward recovery, the 
curriculum offer has and continues to remain ‘fluid’ as Partners meet the needs of 

Page 6



learners and the challenges of delivery. Some providers focussing on engagement 
type programmes targeting mental health and wellbeing, with one Partner (MTCBC) 
piloting an approach called ‘Wellbeing Friday’ where learners can access a six week 
programme to develop strategies to deal with stress and anxiety. An exercise to 
evaluate and audit the curriculum offer across the Partnership is currently being 
undertaken.  
 

5.7 Digital poverty has been an area of concern for the Partnership, as some learners 
struggle with online learning due to a lack of IT skills and access to IT equipment.  
Many Partners have focused on the delivery of IT skills and a small number have 
offered IT loan schemes. Monitoring of this area continues, with the recent rollout of a 
Digital Learner survey to gather data on learner and staff experiences and access to 
IT. This data is currently being collated for analysis.  
 

5.8 To support the ACL sector, Welsh Government provided small revenue grants to each 
local authority to support staff training needs and mental health and wellbeing. In 
collaboration with Rhondda Cynon Taff and Bridgend, Merthyr Tydfil developed a 
regional Mental Health and Wellbeing project that focused on staff training needs, in 
particular blended and online learning approaches, and health and wellbeing for both 
learners and staff.   The training was offered across the Partnerships via a ‘train the 
trainer’ model and planning has taken place to cascade the learning. This regional 
approach was highlighted as a good practice model in one of Estyn Thematic Report 
was published in March 2021, https://www.estyn.gov.wales/system/files/2021-
03/Learner Mental Health and Emotional Wellbeing in the Post-16 sectors .pdf.  
 

 
5.9 Adult Learning – Proposed Regional Partnership Update  

 
5.9.1 WG have introduced the revised funding formula which benefitted Merthyr Tydfil 

however due to the conditions of the grant (only 3% management and coordination) 
Merthyr Tydfil had to increase its investment into Adult Community Learning. In effect 
this increase in grant and the need for it to be used on delivery will see more learning 
opportunities for the residents of Merthyr Tydfil.  It will however still need to be focused 
on the Welsh Government priorities of essential skills, IT and ESOL.  
 

5.9.2 The proposed regionalisation of adult community learning partnerships to align with 
the Regional Skills Partnerships has been delayed due to the pandemic, 
understandably this has not been a high priority for a number of the organisations 
which need to be involved. A number of meetings have taken place between the three 
local authorities, Further Education Colleges and other stakeholders. However to date 
attendance at the meetings has also impacted on the ability of partners to develop any 
detailed options or outline agreements on ways forward.  

 
5.9.3 Partners have reviewed differing models across Wales and a questionnaire has been 

rolled out across the regional partners to gather views. This has led to two options 
being considered both of which would need detailed papers to be developed in order 
to decide any future direction of travel. These options are an  In-kind partnership model 
where each partner leads on a key function for the partnership, or alternatively  a 
funded centrally coordinated approach financially contributed to by all partners. 
Neither paper is currently developed and therefore the implications of any regional 
approach are not yet mapped out or known and due to the need to increase the 
involvement of the 3 colleges involved (Bridgend College/The College Merthyr tydfil/ 

Page 7

https://www.estyn.gov.wales/system/files/2021-03/Learner%20Mental%20Health%20and%20Emotional%20Wellbeing%20in%20the%20Post-16%20sectors%20.pdf
https://www.estyn.gov.wales/system/files/2021-03/Learner%20Mental%20Health%20and%20Emotional%20Wellbeing%20in%20the%20Post-16%20sectors%20.pdf


Coleg Y Cymoed) each local authority is now trying to initiate local discussions with 
the colleges about their preferences.   

 
5.9.4  As with the regional partnerships Welsh Government has not made any significant 

further progress on the national approach due to the pandemic, that we are currently 
aware of.  

 
 

6.0 WHERE WE WANT TO BE AND WHAT DO WE NEED TO DO NEXT  
 
6.1 Whilst in general good progress has been made in regard to developing and 

agreeing process and system related to quality assurance, during a very challenging 
period, there is a need now to instigate and embed the quality assurance cycle 
across the partnership and centralise the approach to the collection and analysis of 
data. A work stream has been agreed to gather and establish the curriculum offer, 
enrolment and outcomes data across the partnership 
 

6.1.1 With the onset of more classroom delivery instigate peer observation format to 
support quality systems for teaching and learning and continuous professional 
development of staff, developing joint collaborative training opportunities, with a key 
focus on the needs of ESOL tutors.   
 

6.1.2 Roll out of the MT ACL Professional Practice Forum, with an agreed terms of 
reference and annual events creating an arena for the sharing of good practice and 
shared partnership approach to staff CPD and training,.  

 
6.1.3 A developed centralised approach to the roll out and analysis of Learner Voice data, 

to establish needs and inform plans.  Review of the Partnership Learner Voice 
Survey, focusing on the learner experience during the pandemic, mental health and 
wellbeing, IT needs and preferred learning style ie online/ face to face.  
 

6.1.4 Implement the ESOL review findings, address the gaps in PT provision and establish 
performance data and training needs of staff  
 

6.1.5 Establish the Welsh language skills of staff and learners with the roll out of an audit 
across the Partnership. Contribute to and support the roll out of the Welsh Language 
strategic development plans locally, and improve links with all Welsh language 
providers to better understand the offer to Learners. Analyse the enrolment data for 
online Welsh courses.  
 

6.1.6 Adult Learning – Proposed Regional Partnership in Merthyr Tydfil;  Have 
options papers which can be shared  with scrutiny and cabinet that will allow an 
informed decision to be made regarding the impacts of any regional approach on the  
community of Merthyr Tydfil.  
 

 

7.0 CONTRIBUTION TO RAISING ASPIRATIONS RAISING STANDARDS 
STRATEGY 
 

7.1 The contents of this report relate to the following RARS Themes and Goals 
 

Page 8



Theme   

 Partnership and Collaboration 

 Pandemic Recovery 
 

Goals  

 Supporting learners’ health and wellbeing 

 Improving achievement and progression 
 
 
 

 
8.0 CONTRIBUTION TO WELLBEING OBJECTIVES 

 
8.1 The contents of this report relate to the following Wellbeing Objectives: 

 

 A prosperous Wales 

 A resilient Wales 

 A healthier Wales 

 A more equal Wales 

 A Wales of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh Language 
 

 
 
 
 
 
SUE WALKER 
CHIEF OFFICER, LEARNING 

COUNCILLOR LISA MYTTON 
PORTFOLIO LEAD  

 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

   
 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution?  
 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 
 

 
 

SCRUTINY REPORT 
 

 

 

 

To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen 

Forward Work Programme 2021/22  
 
 
1.0 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 

1.1 To provide the Scrutiny Committee with its work programme for consideration and to 
prepare in advance of the next scrutiny committee meeting. 

 
1.2 To remind Scrutiny Committee members that they need to consider the requirements 

of the Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 in all aspects of scrutiny 
work. 

 
2.0 RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 

2.1 The Committee considers the attached Forward Work Programme and approves, 
revises or amends it as deemed appropriate; and to consider the questions at 3.7 in 
planning for the next meeting.  

 
 

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 

3.1 The attached forward work programme identifies the topics and issues under 
consideration by the Scrutiny Committee and allows an opportunity for additional 
subjects to be identified and included on the programme. 

 
3.2 Scrutiny committees are required to prepare and keep under review a programme for 

their future work. By reviewing and prioritising issues, members are able to ensure 
that the work programme delivers a member-led agenda.  

 
3.3 The Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 requires each Public Service 

Board (PSB) and Council to work with their communities to develop local objectives. 
Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council (MTCBC) and the Cwm Taf PSB have acted 
on this. 

Date Written 16th December 2020 

Report Author Scrutiny Section 

Committee Division Scrutiny  

Exempt/Non Exempt Non Exempt 

Committee Date 7th June 2021 

Page 11

Agenda Item 6



 
3.4 MTCBC has four local Wellbeing Objectives, each having clear outcomes that will 

help the Council to respond to local community needs and contribute to the seven 
national wellbeing goals. The four Wellbeing Objectives are:- 

 
 

BS Best Start to Life - Children and young people get the best start to life and are 
equipped with the skills they need to be successful learners and confident 
individuals.  
 
The key outcomes for Best Start to Life are: 
 

 Children live in a nurturing and stimulating home environment  

 Children have access to high quality pre-school and school education  

 Improve the educational outcomes for all children and young people  

 Children and young people have good health and wellbeing 
 
 

WL Working Life - People feel supported to develop the skills required to meet the 
needs of businesses, with a developing, safe infrastructure which makes Merthyr 
Tydfil as an attractive destination.  
 
The key outcomes for Working Life are:  
 

 Merthyr Tydfil realises its full economic potential, with a skilled workforce and 
better employment opportunities; 

 People value and enjoy the built and natural environment, protecting and 
enhancing our cultural assets for current and future generations;  

 We have strong, resilient and supportive communities where people take 
responsibility for their own actions and how they affect others.  

 
 

EW Environmental Wellbeing - Communities protect, enhance and promote our 
environment and countryside.  
 
 The key outcomes for Environmental Wellbeing are:  
 

 Environmental damage is minimised by preventing pollution 

 To maximise the amount of materials and resources recycled in line with the 
waste hierarchy; 

 Merthyr Tydfil has good quality, biodiverse and connected green infrastructure 
and open spaces; and 

 The use of renewable and low carbon energy is increased.  
 

LW Living Well - People are empowered to live independently within their 
communities, where they are safe and enjoy good physical and mental health.  
 
The key outcomes for Living Well are: 
 

 People live safe and independent lives within their communities 

 Children and adults are safeguarded from harm and feel safe 

 Children and young people live safely with their family or close to home and 
have transitioned well into adulthood. 

 

 

Page 12



3.5 The Scrutiny Committee is encouraged to identify issues that reflect these priorities 
that are within your remit and/or are a priority for local people and communities. If a 
matter is a recurring issue for the people you, as Councillors, represent, the 
likelihood is that it is something that the Committee should consider. The more 
relevant the issue is to local communities then the greater the likelihood of engaging 
those communities in the scrutiny process and of producing outcomes that will be 
visible to those communities you represent. 

 
3.6 MTCBC has developed an ‘Our Shared Vision’ document (Appendix I). This makes 

the connections from the seven national Wellbeing Goals through to the local 
objectives and political priorities. This document is contained within one page and 
acts as an easy to understand guide. When considered with service area strategies 
and operational plans a thread is created that can be extended down to individual 
tasks. This helps staff members see how they are contributing to the Act and the 
‘Wales We Want’, and will assist Scrutiny members better understand the 
connections with the Act. 

 
3.7 The work programme is a dynamic document and is reviewed at every meeting of 

the Committee to ensure that its contents are still relevant and will add value to what 
the Council and partners are doing. At each meeting the committee will agree the 
agenda items for their next meeting and in preparation may in advance wish to ask 
itself the following questions. 
 

Q) Why has the item been placed on a Scrutiny Work Programme? 

a. Does this item/ topic contribute to the delivery of the Council’s wellbeing 
objectives? 

b. Does this item/ topic contribute to the delivery of the Council’s corporate 
priorities/ objectives? 

c. Is this item/ topic relating to service performance concerns? 
d. Is this item/ topic of significant public interest? 
e. Does the item/ topic have any budgetary implications? 
f. Is this an item/ topic where Scrutiny involvement will make a significant 

difference and achieve tangible outcomes? 
g. Can effective Scrutiny of this issue be delivered from within available 

resources? 
 
Q) What is the specific role of the Committee? 

            This will depend on the item – for example the role could be: 
 

a. to determine if performance levels are acceptable in relation to a particular 
department; 

 b.  to determine if a specific policy is fit for purpose; 
 c.  to satisfy itself that the Authority is working well with its partners in tackling a 

major issue; 
d.  to gather the views of specific stakeholders as part of an on-going scrutiny 

investigation/ review; 
e. to explore possible solutions to an issue. 
 
 

 

Page 13



Q) What outcome is the Committee seeking from the consideration of this 
item? 

a. To comment on the proposed budget and make suggestions to cabinet 
regarding the proposed budget’s ability to deliver the priorities of the council  

b. Identification of any causes for concern and note successes. 
c. To receive an overview presentation. 
d. To gain an understanding of and to comment on a policy/ strategy 
e. To explore ideas around the setting of budgets while considering the 

pressures facing each service. This also helps provide an overview of the 
policy frame work.  

f. For the scrutiny committee to gain an overview and refresh their knowledge of 
the wellbeing objectives/ other plan/ other strategy. 

g. Improvement in service delivery 
 

Q) What information does the Committee need to fulfil this role/ achieve 
this outcome?  

What is the Committee trying to do? You might be trying to do some or all of 
the following i.e. establish facts; gather opinions; or explore new ideas/ 
solutions. 

 

Q) Who should be invited to the meeting to provide the information? 

Depending on the information you need you might want to hear from a range 
of witnesses – e.g. Cabinet members, Senior Officers, Service users, and 
External partners – e.g. Police, Strategic Partners etc 

 

Q) Does the Committee need to ask for written representations? 

The Committee may wish to pose some questions to the Directorate/ Cabinet 
Member/ External Partner etc. prior to the meeting. This may help in instances 
when the Committee is looking for something specific to be addressed. This 
will assist whoever is attending to ensure that they have the information/ 
answer ready for the meeting.  

 

Q) Which meeting format/ venue would be most appropriate for the item 
and for the witnesses that will be invited to attend? 

 Due to the outbreak of the Covid-19 global pandemic, all scrutiny committees 
are to be held via Microsoft Teams at least for the time-being. This decision 
has been taken to ensure the safety of our members, officers and all others in 
attendance. Currently, there is no clear indication of when hybrid meetings will 
be appropriate; and this will be reviewed in line with any updates and advice 
from U.K. and Welsh Government. 

 
Even under normal circumstances, meetings do not have to be held in a 
formal committee room environment. You may wish to hold occasional 
meetings in community location settings e.g. community centres, sports 
facilities etc. It depends on the subject. Some people find the formal setting 
intimidating. Site visits for example may be more appropriate to see first-hand 
what the committee is investigating/ obtaining information on e.g. waste sites, 
regeneration projects etc. 
 
 

Page 14



Q) Method of Scrutiny? 

 Once Members have identified the matters they wish to scrutinise, 
consideration should be given to scoping the subject in more detail including 
the timing and method of scrutiny to be used. Support in this process will be 
given by the Scrutiny and Support Manager and Officer. Members may wish 
to: 

a. Consider an item at a single meeting; 

b. Consider an item over a series of meetings; 

c. Allocate the work to a small working group of Members (Task & Finish group) 
to investigate the issue over a period of 2-3 months (this may involve visits to 
see how services are working in practice); 

d. Undertake an Inquiry Day (or days); 

e. Undertake joint scrutiny with members of another Scrutiny Committee; 

f. Invite expert witnesses to give their views; 

g. Seeking the views of service users/ carers and/ or the general public (public 
calls for evidence) 

 
 
 
Performance and Scrutiny Department 
MTCBC 
 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

Statement of Wellbeing 
& Focus on the Future: 
Wellbeing in our 
Community 

4th April 2018 MTCBC Website 
 
Full Council 4th April 2018  
 
 

 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution?  
 

No 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 15

http://democracy.merthyr.gov.uk/documents/g2694/Public%20reports%20pack%2004th-Apr-2018%2017.30%20Full%20Council.pdf?T=10&LLL=0


 
 
 
 

  

APPENDIX I 

Page 16



Learning and LGES Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2021/2022 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

As per the Audit Wales scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic 
area and the outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements. 
 

 

Date / Timing Overarching Item Linked to MTCBC’s 
Wellbeing Objectives/ 
Cross Cutting Strategies 

and Plans 

Officer & Cabinet Member 
 

 (Other) 
Scrutiny Focus  

7th June 2021 

Draft Annual Work 
Programme 2020/21 

BS Best Start to Life Councillor Harvey Jones and 
Scrutiny Committee members 

Scrutiny and Challenge: -  To consider the draft 
Annual Work programme for 2021/2022 
 

Adult Community Learning 
(ACL) 
 

BS Best Start to Life 
RARS Strategy 

Lisa Mytton – Leader and 
Portfolio Member; Sue Walker 

– Chief Officer of Education 

Scrutiny and Challenge: - Members to consider the 
report for pre-decision prior to being presented to 
Cabinet. 
 

12th July 2021 

Update on Education Data 
(Following the Workshop on 
the 8th June 2021) 
 
 

BS Best Start to Life 
RARS Strategy 

Corporate Wellbeing 
Plan (FOTF) 

RTI Plan 
 

Lisa Mytton – Leader and 
Portfolio Member; Sue Walker 

– Chief Officer of Education 

Scrutiny and Challenge: - Members to explore the 
outcomes of the workshop and to confirm next steps 
in relation to Key Performance Indicators (KPI’s) for 
Education Services moving forward. 

13th 
September 

2021 

Asset Management Plan 
 
 

BS Best Start to Life 
RARS Strategy 

Corporate Wellbeing 
Plan (FOTF) 

RTI Plan 
 

Lisa Mytton – Leader and 
Portfolio Member; Sue Walker 

– Chief Officer of Education; 
Anthony Lewis – Head of 

School Planning and 
Improvement 

 

Scrutiny and Challenge: - The Scrutiny Committee 
will receive an update on the developments of the 
Asset Management Plan (21st Century Schools) 
projects for Learning. 
 

Report on Youth Services  
 

BS Best Start to Life 
RARS Strategy 

Corporate Wellbeing 
Plan (FOTF) 

RTI Plan 
 

Lisa Mytton – Leader and 
Portfolio Member; Sue Walker 

– Chief Officer of Education; 
Chris Hole – Head of 

Community Wellbeing 

Scrutiny and Challenge: - TBC 

8th November 
2021 

ESTYN Self Evaluation 
Reporting (SER) Framework 
(Inspection Area 2) and the 
Corporate Self Evaluation KQ2 
 

BS Best Start to Life 
Corporate Wellbeing 

Plan (FOTF) 
 
 

Lisa Mytton – Leader and 
Portfolio Member; Sue Walker 

– Chief Officer of Education 

Scrutiny and Challenge: - The Scrutiny Committee 
will receive a report from the Chief Education Officer 
on a Local Government Education Services Inspection 
Framework, which has been aligned to the corporate 

self-evaluation framework. The Committee will 

P
age 17



Learning and LGES Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2021/2022 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

As per the Audit Wales scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic 
area and the outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements. 
 

review the findings report; and review the 
validity of the judgements made by the Chief 
Officer to secure assurance that these are robust 
and appropriately evidenced. 
 

COVID-19 Recovery & Pupil 
Wellbeing – Overview of Pupil 
standards and state of 
Wellbeing 

BS Best Start to Life 
RARS Strategy 

Corporate Wellbeing 
Plan (FOTF) 

RTI Plan 
 

Lisa Mytton – Leader and 
Portfolio Member; Sue Walker 

– Chief Officer of Education 
HT’s to be confirmed 

Scrutiny and Challenge: - The scrutiny committee will 
receive a report on the standards of pupils since 
returning to school, as well as an update on the 
wellbeing of pupils. SW to confirm 2 HT’s to attend 
 

13th 
December 

2021 

RARS Strategy – Progress 
Update on Key Commitments 
 
 

BS Best Start to Life 
RARS Strategy 

Corporate Wellbeing 
Plan (FOTF) 

RTI Plan 
 

Lisa Mytton – Leader and 
Portfolio Member; Sue Walker 

– Chief Officer of Education 
 

Scrutiny and Challenge: - The scrutiny committee will 
explore and provide challenge on the progress made 
against the key commitments set out within the 
RARS Strategy. 

Business Education Training 
Partnership (BETP) Update 
 
 

BS Best Start to Life 
RARS Strategy 

Corporate Wellbeing 
Plan (FOTF) 

RTI Plan 
 

Lisa Mytton – Leader and 
Portfolio Member; Sue Walker 

– Chief Officer of Education; 
Chris Hole – Head of 

Community Wellbeing 
Officers from RPP to be 

considered 
 

Scrutiny and Challenge: - Committee members will 
examine and offer challenge in relation to the 
progress of the BETP action plan. 

Update Report from the 
College of Merthyr Tydfil 
 

BS Best Start to Life 
RARS Strategy 

Corporate Wellbeing 
Plan (FOTF) 

RTI Plan 
 

Lisa Mytton – Leader and 
Portfolio Member; Sue Walker 

– Chief Officer of Education; 
Chris Hole – Head of 

Community Wellbeing 
College representatives to be 

considered 
 

Scrutiny and Challenge: - The scrutiny committee will 
receive a report from the College of Merthyr Tydfil 
outlining elements of good practice as well as any 
potential areas of concern, including but not limited 
to the issues relating to young people that are Not in 
Education, Employment or Training (NEET). 
 

24th January 
2022 

ESTYN Self Evaluation 
Reporting (SER) Framework 

BS Best Start to Life Lisa Mytton – Leader and 
Portfolio Member; Sue Walker 

Scrutiny and Challenge: - The Scrutiny Committee 
will receive a report from the Chief Education Officer 

P
age 18



Learning and LGES Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2021/2022 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

As per the Audit Wales scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic 
area and the outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements. 
 

(Inspection Area 3) and the 
Corporate Self Evaluation KQ3 
 

Corporate Wellbeing 
Plan (FOTF) 

 

– Chief Officer of Education; 
Anthony Lewis – Head of 

School Planning and 
Improvement 

on a Local Government Education Services Inspection 
Framework, which has been aligned to the corporate 

self-evaluation framework. The Committee will 
review the findings report; and review the 
validity of the judgements made by the Chief 
Officer to secure assurance that these are robust 
and appropriately evidenced. 
 

Trauma Informed Care and 
Nurture Provision 
 

BS Best Start to Life 
RARS Strategy 

Corporate Wellbeing 
Plan (FOTF) 

RTI Plan 
 

Lisa Mytton – Leader and 
Portfolio Member; Sue Walker 

– Chief Officer of Education; 
Chris Hole – Head of 

Community Wellbeing 
HT’s to be considered 

 

Scrutiny and Challenge: - This report was requested 
by members during last year’s scrutiny committee 
cycle (2020/21). The committee will explore the work 
being undertaken by schools in relation to trauma 
informed care and nurture provision.  
Potential to hold as a workshop in one of the schools. 

Attendance in Schools 
 
 

BS Best Start to Life 
RARS Strategy 

Corporate Wellbeing 
Plan (FOTF) 

RTI Plan 
 

Lisa Mytton – Leader and 
Portfolio Member; Sue Walker 
– Chief Officer of Education 

Scrutiny and Challenge: - The scrutiny committee will 
receive an update on attendance from early years to 
secondary schools. The committee will examine the 
work being done to improve attendance levels for all 
learners. 

7th March 
2022 

ESTYN Self Evaluation 
Reporting (SER) Framework 
(Inspection Area 1) and the 
Corporate Self Evaluation KQ1 

BS Best Start to Life 
Corporate Wellbeing 

Plan (FOTF) 
 

Lisa Mytton – Leader and 
Portfolio Member; Sue Walker 

– Chief Officer of Education; 
Anthony Lewis – Head of 

School Planning and 
Improvement 

Scrutiny and Challenge: - The Scrutiny Committee 
will receive a report from the Chief Education Officer 
on a Local Government Education Services Inspection 
Framework, which has been aligned to the corporate 

self-evaluation framework. The Committee will 
review the findings report; and review the 
validity of the judgements made by the Chief 
Officer to secure assurance that these are robust 
and appropriately evidenced. 
 

Capita One Development 
 
 

BS Best Start to Life 
RARS Strategy 

Corporate Wellbeing 
Plan (FOTF) 

Cllr Lisa Mytton: Cabinet 
Portfolio Member / Sue 
Walker: Chief Officer – 

Scrutiny and Challenge: - The Scrutiny Committee 
will receive a report on use of Capita One within the 
Learning Department and next steps for ongoing 
development. 

P
age 19



Learning and LGES Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2021/2022 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

As per the Audit Wales scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic 
area and the outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements. 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Additional items to consider for Work 

Date to be 
confirmed 
 

To invite / visit Heads and Chairs of Governance at the following schools :- 
 

 Ysgol Gynradd Gymraeg Santes Tudful 

 Pen-y-dre High School 

 Ynysowen Community Primary School 

 Visit Educated Other Than at School (EOTAS) to see what provision is available (before 8th April). 

 Visit LRB’s (Learning Resource Basis) as part of the programme of visits. 
 

Date to be 
confirmed 

Curriculum for Wales – Readiness (9th May Committee cancelled due to elections) 
CSC Challenge Framework 
 

 

RTI Plan 
 

Learning / Emma Strand: Data 
Officer 

 

 

9th May 2022 

 

Cancelled due to May Elections 
 

P
age 20


	Agenda
	3 Adult Community Learning Partnership Progress Report
	6 Work Programme
	Appendix


